

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS

ECIC ECECD Spring 2023 SED Institute Accommodations RFP No: CREC-ECIC-2223-001

November 18, 2022

PROPOSAL DUE:

December 16, 2022 3:00 PM

Universal Commodity Codes:

96115, 97130, 97165, 98512

PROCUREMENT DEPARTMENT:

4216 Balloon Park Rd NE Albuquerque, NM 87109

CONTACT:

Carol Elliott, CPO (505) 889-3412 <u>celliott@crecnm.org</u>

TABLE OF CONTENTS

			Page No.
١.	INTRO	DUCTION	
	Α.	PURPOSE OF THIS REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS	4
	В.	SUMMARY OF SCOPE OF WORK	4
	С.	SCOPE OF PROCUREMENT	4
	D.	PROCUREMENT MANAGER	4
	Ε.	DEFINITION OF TERMINOLOGY	4
		BACKGROUND INFORMATION	6
	G.	PROCUREMENT LIBRARY	6
II.	CONDI	TIONS GOVERNING THE PROCUREMENT	
	А.	SEQUENCE OF EVENTS	8
	В.	EXPLANATION OF EVENTS	8
		1. Issue of RFP	8
		2. Submission of Proposal	8
		3. Proposal Evaluation	8
		4. Selection of Winning Proposal	9
		5. Finalize Contract	9
		6. Contract Award	9
		7. Protest Deadline	9
	С.	GENERAL REQUIREMENTS	
		1. Acceptance of Conditions Governing the Procurement	10
		2. Incurring Cost	10
		3. Prime Contractor Responsibility	10
		4. Subcontractors	10
		5. Amended Proposals	10
		6. Offeror's Rights to Withdraw Proposal	10
		7. Proposal Offer Firm	10
		8. Disclosure of Proposal Contents	10
		9. No Obligation	11
		10. Termination	11
		11. Sufficient Appropriation	11
		12. Legal Review	11
		13. Governing Law	11
		14. Basis for Proposal	12
		15. Contract Terms and Conditions	12
		16. Offeror's Terms and Conditions	12
		17. Contract Negotiations	12
		18. Offeror Qualifications	12
		19. Right to Waive Minor Irregularities	12
		20. Change in Contractor Representatives	13
		21. Agency Rights	13
		22. Right to Publish	13

		23. Ownership of Proposals	13
		24. Electronic Mail Address Required	13
		25. Use of Electronic Versions of this RFP	13
		26. Letter of Transmittal	13
		27. Campaign Contribution Disclosure Form	14
		28. New Mexico Preferences	14
III.	RESPO	NSE FORMAT AND ORGANIZATION	
	Α.	NUMBER OF RESPONSES	15
	В.	NUMBER OF COPIES	15
	С.	PROPOSAL FORMAT AND ORGANIZATION	15
IV.	SPECIF	CATIONS	
	Α.	INFORMATION	17
	В.	MANDATORY SPECIFICATIONS	18
		1. Corporate Experience	18
		2. Corporate References	18
		3. Project Plan	18
		4. Cost	18
		5. New Mexico Preferences	19
V.	EVALU	ATION	
	Α.	EVALUATION POINT TABLE/SUMMARY	20
	В.	EVALUATION FACTORS	20
	С.	EVALUATION PROCESS	21
APPEN	IDICES:		
	Α.	Contract Terms and Conditions	23
	В.	Mandatory Requirements Checklist	26
	С.	Letter of Transmittal Form	29
	D.	Campaign Contribution Disclosure Form	30

I. INTRODUCTION

A. <u>PURPOSE OF THIS REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS</u>

The purpose of this Request for Proposals is to solicit sealed proposals to establish a contract through competitive procurement for the Central Region Educational Cooperative REC #5 (herein-after referred to as "CREC" or "Agency").

It is the intent of this RFP to obtain quotes/proposals from qualified and experienced Contractors to host a 2 (two) day spring conference centrally located facility in New Mexico.

B. SUMMARY OF SCOPE OF WORK

Central Region Educational Cooperative REC #5 will be hosting the Early Childhood Instructional Coaches' Spring Conference. The two-day conference will have 300 attendees, require 200 lodging rooms at the government rate on the first evening of the event, catering for two days, a general session room with AV, and ten to 15 breakout meeting rooms.

C. SCOPE OF PROCUREMENT

The scope of the procurement shall encompass the defined scope of work. There shall be no contract extensions or renewals.

D. <u>PROCUREMENT MANGER</u>

CREC has designated a Procurement Manager who is responsible for the conduct of this procurement whose name, address and telephone number are listed below.

Carol Elliott, CPO Central Region Educational Cooperative #5 4216 Balloon Park Rd NE Albuquerque, NM 87109 Phone (505) 889-3412 Fax (505) 889-3422 celliott@crecnm.org

Any inquiries or requests regarding this procurement should be submitted to the Procurement Manager in writing. **Offerors may contact ONLY the Procurement Manager regarding this solicitation.** Other agency employees do not have the authority to respond on behalf of the agency.

E. <u>DEFINITION OF TERMINOLOGY</u>

This section contains definitions and abbreviation that are used throughout this procurement document.

"Agency" or "Purchasing Agency" means Central Region Educational Cooperative #5.

"Chief Procurement Officer" or "CPO" means the person holding the position as the head of the central procurement office for the Central Region Educational Cooperative REC #5 whose address follows:

CREC Procurement Department 4216 Balloon Park Rd NE Albuquerque, NM 87109

"Contract" or "Agreement" means a written agreement for the procurement of items of tangible personal property or services.

"Contract Administrator" means the individual designated by the Agency to administer the contract after it has been executed.

"Contractor" means a successful Offeror who enters into a binding contract.

"Determination" means the written documentation of a decision by the Procurement Manager including findings of fact supporting a decision. A determination becomes part of the procurement file.

"Desirable" The terms "may", "can", "should", "preferably", or "prefers" identify a desirable or discretionary item or factor (as opposed to "mandatory").

"Evaluation Committee" means a body appointed by the Agency management and/or the Chief Procurement Officer to perform the evaluation of the Offeror proposals.

"Evaluation Committee Report" means a document prepared by the Procurement Manager and the Evaluation Committee for submission to the Agency management and the Chief Procurement Officer for contract award. It contains all written determinations resulting from the procurement and contains one or more recommendations regarding contract award.

"Key Personnel" means the staff provided by a Contractor or a Subcontractor. Key Personnel will include at a minimum the project manager, IT specialist, and the Offeror's company executive with the responsibility for the overall performance of the Contract. Key Personnel may appear on-site.

"Mandatory" The terms "must", "shall", "will", "is required", or "are required" identify a mandatory item or factor (as opposed to "desirable"). Failure to meet a mandatory item or factor will result in the rejection of the Offeror's proposal.

"Offeror" is any person, corporation, or partnership who chooses to submit a proposal.

"**Procurement Manager**" means the person or designee authorized by the Agency and/or the Chief Procurement Officer to manage or administer a procurement requiring the evaluation of competitive sealed proposals.

"Request for Proposals" or "RFP" means all documents, including those attached or incorporated by reference, used for soliciting proposals.

"**Responsible Offeror**" means and Offeror who submits a responsive proposal and who has furnished, when required, information and data to prove that his financial resources, production or service facilities, personnel, service reputation and experience are adequate to make satisfactory delivery of the services or items of tangible personal property described in the proposal.

"Responsive Offer" or "Responsive Proposal" means an offer or proposal which conforms in all material respects to the requirements set forth in the request for proposals. Material respects of request for proposals include, but are not limited to price, quality, quantity or delivery requirements.

F. BACKGROUND INFORMATION

The Central Region Educational Cooperative (CREC) is one of ten regional educational cooperatives established in 1984 by the New Mexico Department of Education. We provide support services to seven rural school districts and four state-supported programs as well as the families served by them. We accomplish our purpose by offering a variety of resources and services, including early childhood programs, pre-employment transition services training, technology assistance, administration support, grant administration, and more.

New Mexico PreK is a voluntary preschool program created by the Pre-Kindergarten Act of 2005. The PreK program is jointly administered by the Public Education Department and the Children, Youth, and Families Department. The purpose of PreK is to ensure every child in New Mexico has the opportunity to attend a high-quality early childhood education program before kindergarten, increase access to voluntary high-quality pre-kindergarten programs, provide developmentally appropriate activities for New Mexico children, expand early childhood community capacity, support linguistically and culturally appropriate curriculum, and focus on school readiness. CREC'S Early Childhood Instructional Coaches (ECICs) provide coaching support to NM PreK teaching staff and program administrators for up to 260 PreK classrooms statewide, as well as training for PreK teachers and administrators in 72 districts and 7 state charter schools.

G. PROCUREMENT LIBRARY

The Procurement Manager has established a Procurement Library. The documents listed in the Procurement Library are hereby incorporated into this RFP by reference. Offerors are encouraged to review the material contained in the Procurement Library by accessing the documents from the <u>https://www.crecnm.org/RFP</u> website.

Other than Offeror-reproduced copies, materials cannot be removed from the library.

The library contains information listed below:

- Procurement Regulations
- Campaign Disclosure Contribution Form

II. CONDITIONS GOVERNING THE PROCUREMENT

This section of the RFP contains the schedule for the procurement, describes major procurement events and the conditions governing the procurement.

A. <u>SEQUENCE OF EVENTS</u>

The Procurement Manager will make every effort to adhere to the following schedule:

Action	Date
1. Issue of RFP	11/18/2022
2. Submission of Proposal	12/16/2022
3. Proposal Evaluation	12/19/2022-
	12/20/2022
4. Selection of Winning Proposal	12/21/2022
5. Finalize Contract	1/4/2023 – 1/11/2023
6. Contract Award	1/12/2023
7. Protest Deadline	1/27/2023

B. EXPLANATION OF EVENTS

The following paragraphs describe the activities listed in the sequence of event shown in Section II, Paragraph A.

1. Issue of RFP

This RFP is being issued by CREC and the Procurement Department.

2. <u>Submission of Proposal</u>

ALL OFFEROR PROPOSALS SHALL BE RECEIVED FOR REVIEW AND EVALUATION BY THE PROCUREMENT MANAGER OR DESIGNEE NO LATER THAN 2:00 PM MST ON THE DATE INDICATED IN THE SEQUECE OF EVENTS. Proposals received after this deadline will not be accepted. The date and time will be recorded on each proposal. Proposals shall be addressed and delivered to the Procurement Manager at the address listed in Section I, Paragraph D. Proposals shall be sealed and labeled on the outside of the package to clearly indicate that they are in response to the ECIC Conference Accommodations Request for Proposals. Proposals submitted by facsimile or email will not be accepted.

A public log will be kept of the names of all Offeror organizations that submitted proposals. The contents of any proposal shall not be disclosed to competing offerors prior to contract award.

3. <u>Proposal Evaluation</u>

The evaluation of proposals will be performed by an evaluation committee appointed by Agency management. This process will take place during the dates indicated in the

Sequence of Events. During this time, the Procurement Manager may initiate discussion with Offerors who submit responsive or potentially responsive proposals for the purpose of clarifying aspects of the proposals but may be accepted and evaluated without such discussion. Discussions SHALL NOT be initiated by the Offerors.

4. Selection of Winning Proposal

The Evaluation Committee will select and the Procurement Manager will notify the Offeror of the winning proposal on 12/21/2022.

5. Finalize Contract

The contract will be finalized with the most advantageous Offeror between dates indicated in the Sequence of Events. In the event that mutually agreeable terms cannot be reached within the time specified, the Agency reserves the right to finalize a contract with the next most advantageous Offeror without undertaking a new procurement process.

6. <u>Contract Award</u>

After review of the Evaluation Committee Report, the recommendation of the Agency management, if applicable, and the signed contract; the Chief Procurement Officer will award the contract on the date indicated in the Sequence of Events. This date is subject to change at the discretion of the Chief Procurement Officer.

The contract shall be awarded to the Offeror or Offerors whose proposal is most advantageous, taking into the consideration the evaluation factors set forth in the RFP. The most advantageous proposal may or may not have received the most points.

The award may be subject to additional appropriate governmental approvals, if applicable.

7. Protest Deadline

Any protest by an Offeror shall be timely and in conformance with the applicable procurement regulations. The fifteen (15) calendar day protest period for responsive Offerors shall begin on the day following the contract award and will end at close of business day (4:30 PM MDT) fifteen (15) days after the Contract Award. Protests shall be written and shall include the name and address of the protestor and the request for proposals number. It shall also contain a statement of grounds for protest including appropriate supporting exhibits, and it shall specify the ruling requested from the Chief Procurement Officer. The protest shall be delivered to the Chief Procurement Officer

Carol Elliott, CPO Central Region Educational Cooperative 4216 Balloon Park Road NE Albuquerque, NM 87109

C. <u>GENERAL REQUIREMENTS</u>

This procurement will be conducted in accordance with the State of New Mexico Procurement Code Sections 13-1-28 thru 13-1-199. This General Requirements section contains specific information about the process and conditions under which this RFP is issued.

1. Acceptance of Conditions Governing the Procurement

Offerors shall indicate their acceptance of the Conditions Governing the Procurement section in the letter of transmittal. Submission of a proposal constitutes acceptance of the Evaluation Factors contain in Section V of this RFP.

2. Incurring Cost

Any cost incurred by the Offeror in preparation, transmittal, presentation of any proposal or material submitted in response to this RFP shall be borne solely by the Offeror.

3. Prime Contractor Responsibility

Any contract that may result from this RFP shall specify the prime contractor is solely responsible for fulfillment of the contract with the Agency. The Agency will make contract payments to only the prime contractor.

4. Subcontractors

All work that may result from this procurement shall be performed by the prime contractor. Subcontracting of work is not acceptable.

5. <u>Amended Proposals</u>

An Offeror may submit an amended proposal before the deadline for receipt of proposals. Such amended proposals shall be complete replacements for a previously submitted proposal and shall be clearly identified as such in the transmittal letter. The Agency personal will not merge, collate, or assemble proposal materials.

6. Offeror's Rights to Withdraw Proposal

Offerors will be allowed to withdraw their proposals at any time prior to the deadline for receipt of proposals. The Offeror shall submit a written withdrawal request signed by the Offeror's duly authorized representative addressed to the Procurement Manager.

The approval or denial of withdrawal requests received after the deadline for receipt of the proposals is governed by the applicable procurement regulations.

7. Proposal Offer Firm

Responses to this RFP, including proposal prices, will be considered firm for ninety (90) days after the due date for receipt or proposals.

8. Disclosure of Proposal Contents

The proposals will be kept confidential until a contract is awarded. At that time, all proposals and documents pertaining to the proposals will be open to the public, except for the material that is proprietary or confidential. The Procurement Manager will not disclose or make public any pages of a proposal on which the Offeror has stamped or imprinted "proprietary" or "confidential" subject to the following requirements.

Proprietary or confidential data shall be readily separable from the proposal, in order to facilitate eventual public inspection of the non-confidential portion of the proposal. Confidential data is normally restricted to confidential financial information concerning the Offeror's organization and data that qualifies as a trade secret in accordance with New Mexico Uniform Trade Secrets Act [57-3A-1 thru 57-3A-7 NMSA 1978]. The cost of services proposed shall not be designated as proprietary or confidential information.

If a request is received for disclosure of data for which an Offeror has made a written request for confidentiality, the Chief Procurement Officer shall examine the Offeror's request and make a written determination that specifies which portions of the proposal should be disclosed. Unless the Offeror takes legal action to prevent the disclosure, the proposal will be so disclosed. The proposal shall be open to public inspection subject to any continuing prohibition on the disclosure of confidential data.

9. No Obligation

This procurement in no manner obligates CREC to use proposed services until a valid written contract is awarded and approved by the appropriate authorities.

10. Termination

This RFP may be canceled at any time and any and all proposals may be rejected in whole or in part when CREC determines such action to be in the best interest of CREC.

11. <u>Sufficient Appropriation</u>

Any contract awarded as a result of this RFP process may be terminated if sufficient appropriations or authorizations do not exist. Such termination will be effected by sending written notice to the contractor. The Agency's decision as to whether sufficient appropriations and authorizations are available will be accepted by the contractor as final.

12. Legal Review

The Agency requires that all Offerors agree to be bound by the General Requirements contained in this RFP. Any Offeror concerns shall be promptly brought to the attention of the Procurement Manager.

13. Governing Law

This procurement and any agreement with Offerors that may result, shall be governed by the laws of the State of New Mexico.

14. Basis for Proposal

Only information supplied by the Agency in writing through the Procurement Manager or in this RFP should be used as the basis for the preparation of Offerors proposal.

15. Contract Terms and Conditions

The contract between the Agency and a contractor will follow the format specified by the Agency and contain the terms and conditions set forth in Appendix B, "Contract Terms and Conditions." However, the Agency reserves the right to negotiate with successful Offeror provisions in addition to those contained in this RFP. The contents of this RFP, as revised and/or supplemented; and the successful Offeror's proposal will be incorporated into and become part of the contract.

Should an Offeror object to any of the Agency's terms and conditions, as contained in this Section or in Appendix B, that Offeror shall propose specific alternative language to the reference provisions. The Agency may or may not accept the alternative language. General references to the Offeror's terms and conditions or attempts at complete substitutions are not acceptable to the Agency and will result in disqualification of the Offeror's proposal.

The Agency will consider wording changes to Appendix B, Paragraph 2, Scope of Work, Duties and Responsibilities only. Offerors shall provide a brief discussion of the purpose and impact, if any, of each proposed change followed by the specific proposed alternate wording.

16. Offeror's Terms and Conditions

Offerors shall submit with the proposal a complete set of any additional terms and conditions which they intend to have included in a contract with Agency. The Agency is under no obligation to accept any additional terms and conditions.

17. <u>Contract Negotiations</u>

Any additional terms and conditions, which may be the subject of negotiation, will be discussed only between the Agency and the selected Offeror and shall not be deemed an opportunity to amend the Offeror's proposal.

18. Offeror Qualifications

The Evaluation Committee may make such investigations as necessary to determine the ability of the Offeror to adhere to the requirements specified within this RFP. The Evaluation Committee will reject the proposal of any Offeror who is not a Responsible Offeror or fails to submit a Responsive Offer as defined in this RFP (See Section I, Paragraph E).

19. Right to Waive Minor Irregularities

The Evaluation Committee reserves the right to waive minor irregularities. The Evaluation Committee also reserves the right to waive mandatory requirements

provided that all of the otherwise responsive proposals failed to meet the mandatory requirements and/or doing so does not otherwise materially affect the procurement. This right is at the sole discretion of the Evaluation Committee.

20. Change in Contractor Representatives

The Agency reserves the right to request a change in contractor representative if the assigned representatives are not, in the opinion of the Agency, meeting its needs adequately.

21. Agency Rights

The Agency reserves the right to accept all or a portion of an Offeror's proposal. In addition, the Agency reserves the right to purchase professional services from authorized price agreements or in accordance with applicable provisions procurement regulations.

22. Right to Publish

Throughout the duration of this procurement process and contract term, potential Offerors, Offerors and contractors shall secure from the Agency written approval prior to the release of any information that pertains to the potential work or activities covered by this procurement of the subsequent contract. Failure to adhere to this requirement may result in disqualification of the Offeror's proposal or termination of the contract.

23. Ownership of Proposals

All documents submitted in response to this Request for Proposals shall be come the property of CREC. However, non-selected Offerors may retrieve at their expense any technical or user documentation submitted with their proposals after the expiration of the protest period.

24. Electronic Mail Address Required

A large part of the communication regarding this procurement will be conducted by electronic mail (e-mail) Offeror shall have a valid e-mail address to receive this correspondence.

25. Use of Electronic Versions of this RFP

This RFP is being made available by electronic means. If accepted by such means, the Offeror acknowledges and accepts full responsibility to ensure that no changes are made to the RFP. In the event of conflict between a version of the RFP in the Offeror's possession and the version maintained by the Procurement Manager, the version maintained by the Procurement Manager shall govern.

26. Letter of Transmittal

Each proposal shall be accompanied by a letter of transmittal (Please refer to Appendix D). CAUTION: The proposal shall be binding without restriction. Offerors shall not include language in the Letter of Transmittal such as "subject to successful

negotiation" or words to that effect. The letter of transmittal SHALL follow the format provided and it shall be signed by the appropriate representatives. Failure to follow these instructions shall result in the rejections of the proposal.

27. Campaign Contribution Disclosure Form

Offeror must complete, sign, and return the Campaign Contribution Disclosure Form. Appendix E, as part of their proposal. This requirement applies regardless whether a covered contribution was made or not made for the positions of Governor and Lieutenant Governor or other identified elected officials. Failure to complete and return the signed unaltered form will result in disqualification.

28. <u>New Mexico Preferences</u>

THIS PROVISION IS NOT/CANNOT BE APPICABLE TO ANY PROCUREMENT WHICH WILL INCLUDE FEDERAL FUNDS.

III. RESPONSE FORMAT AND ORGANIZATION

A. <u>NUMBER OF RESPONSES</u> Offerors shall submit only one proposal.

B. NUMBER OF COPIES

Offerors shall deliver one (1) original and three (3) identical copies of their proposal to the location specified in Section I, Paragraph D on or before the closing date and time for receipt of proposals.

C. PROPOSAL FORMAT AND ORGANIZATION

All proposal shall be typewritten on standard 8 $1/2'' \times 11''$ paper (larger paper is permissible for charts, spreadsheets, etc.) and placed within a binder with tabs delineating each section. The proposal shall not exceed 25 pages.

The proposal shall be organized and indexed in the following format and shall contain, at a minimum, all listed items in the sequence indicated.

- 1. Letter of Transmittal. See Section II, Paragraph C.25 for requirements.
- 2. Table of Contents
- 3. Proposals Summary (optional)
- 4. Response to Mandatory Specifications
 - a. Corporate Experience
 - b. Corporate References
 - c. Project Plan
 - 1) Accommodations Proposal
 - 2) Catering Proposal
 - 3) Room Block cut-off date
 - 4) Attrition Terms
 - d. Cost Proposal
- 5. Response to Agency Terms and Conditions
- 6. Offeror's Additional Terms and Conditions
- 7. Current W-9
- 8. Campaign Contribution Disclosure Form
- 9. Other Supporting Material

Within each section of their proposal, Offerors should address the items in the order in which they appear in this RFP. All forms provided in the RFP shall be thoroughly completed and included in the appropriate section of the proposal. All discussion of proposed costs, rates or expenses should occur only in the Cost Proposal section.

Any proposal that does not adhere to these requirements may be deemed non-responsive and rejected on that basis. The proposal summary may be included by Offerors to provide the Evaluation Committee with an overview of the technical and business features of the proposal; however, this material will not be used in the evaluation process unless specifically reference from other portions of the Offeror's proposal.

Offerors may include other materials that they feel may improve the quality of their responses. However, these items should be included as items in a separate appendix.

IV. SPECIFICATIONS

A. INFORMATION

LOCATION Albuquerque, NM or Surrounding Area

DATES

Any available 2-day period between April 17, 2023 and May 30, 2023

SLEEPING ROOM REQUIREMENTS

	Dates	
Day 1		Total
200		200

ROOM RATES AND PROVISIONS

- 200 Lodging rooms are to be booked at the current government rate
- Dishonored reservations to be counted toward room block commitment calculations
- Three-week cut off for room block, with rooms provided at the group rate after the cut off if rooms are available
- Room attrition should specify our ability to reduce room block by a total of 20% without penalty
- If you are unable to accommodate the entire room block, please identify overflow plans

GENERAL PROVISIONS

- Sufficient meeting space and sleeping accommodations in the same building or within walking distance (under 1 mile).
- Billing procedures: CREC needs 30 days after receipt of agreed upon invoice in order to pay. Additionally, CREC operates under the State of New Mexico's fiscal year, and will require that the invoice is received with enough time to review and process it for payment before close of business on June 30, 2023.
- Please indicate that the hotel will not be undergoing renovation at the time of our event.
- Prior to the event, we will provide an estimated program specifying our daily requirements. Hotel should assign and provide meeting rooms and banquet space names 30 days prior to event so we may print the program. The hotel may not make changes to these rooms without written consent by CREC.
- Please detail that there is no set up or change charges for meeting rooms. CREC would like all room set ups to be completed in a minimum of 30 minutes prior to posted meeting time.

MEETING ROOM AND F&B REQUIREMENTS

- A general session room with AV to accommodate 300 people set in rounds
- 10-15 breakout session rooms without AV to accommodate 25 people
- Working Breakfast will be provided on Day 2
- Working Lunch will be provided on Days 1-2 with Keynote

B. MANDATORY SPECIFICATIONS

Offerors must provide a written response and/or a reference to an appropriate paragraph(s) in supporting technical documentation for each specification. The proposal response must follow the order in which the specifications are listed in the RFP. All the specifications are MANDATORY. Offerors should respond in the form of a thorough narrative to each specification. The narratives along with required supporting materials will be evaluated and awarded points accordingly.

1. <u>Corporate Experience</u>

Offerors shall submit a statement of relevant company experience. The documentation shall thoroughly describe how the Offeror has supplied expertise for similar contracts and work related to hosting conferences. Offerors shall include an overview of company history, including the date established and the location of headquarters.

2. <u>Corporate References</u>

Offerors shall include three external references from clients who are willing to validate the Offerors past performance on similar contracts. The minimum information that shall be provided for each client reference follows:

- a. Name of the contact person
- b. Name of the company or governmental entity
- c. Address of the contact person
- d. Telephone number of contact person
- e. Email address of the contact person
- f. A description of the event and services provided
- 3. Project Plan

The Offeror shall submit a thorough project plan as part of the proposal. At minimum, the project plan shall include the proposed date to host the event, the accommodations proposal that includes catering, the room block cut-off date, and attrition terms. **Any costs or expenses should not be included in this section.**

4. Cost Proposal

The cost proposals shall include:

- Lodging fees which include breakfast combined
- General session room w/AV services that includes working lunches
- Breakout room accommodations

5. <u>New Mexico Preferences</u> RESERVED.

V. EVALUATION

A. EVALUATION POINT SUMMARY

The following is a summary of evaluation factors with point values assigned to each.

Factors	Points Available
Corporate Experience	10
Corporate References	5
Project Plan (a thru z combined total)	
a. Proposed dates	5
b. Proposed accommodations with breakfast	20
c. Proposed working lunches with keynote	20
d. Room block cut-off date	5
e. Attrition terms	5
f. Supplemental items	5
Cost	25
Current W-9	Pass/Fail
Signed Campaign Contribution Disclosure Form	Pass/Fail
TOTAL	100 Points

B. EVALUATION FACTORS

Points will be awarded based on the following evaluation factors:

1. Corporate Experience

Points will be awarded based upon the thoroughness and clarity of the response. The evaluation committee will evaluate the information provided by each Offeror that documents overall qualifications, experience, and background.

2. Corporate References

Points will be awarded based upon an evaluation of the Offeror's work for previous clients receiving similar services to those proposed by the Offeror for this contract.

3. Project Plan

Up to 60 points will be awarded for this evaluation factor based upon the quality and thoroughness of the project plan.

4. Cost

The evaluation of each Offeror's cost proposal will be conducted using the following formula:

Lowest Responsive Offer Total Cost This Offeror's Total Cost X 25 = Award Points

- 5. <u>Current W-9</u> Pass/Fail only. No points assigned.
- 6. <u>Signed Campaign Contribution Disclosure Form</u> Pass/Fail only. No points assigned.

C. EVALUATION PROCESS

The evaluation process will follow the steps listed below:

- 1. All Offeror proposals will be reviewed for compliance with mandatory requirements stated within the RFP. Proposal deemed non-responsive will be eliminated from further consideration.
- 2. The Procurement Manager may contact the Offeror for clarification of the response as specified in Section II, Paragraph B.2.
- 3. The Evaluation Committee may use other sources of information to perform the evaluation as specified in Section II, Paragraph C.18.
- 4. Responsive proposals will be evaluated on the factors in Section V that have been assigned a point value. The responsible Offeror whose proposal is most advantageous to the Agency, taking into consideration the evaluation factor is Section V, will be recommend for contract award as specified in Section II, Paragraph B.6. Please note, however, that a serious deficiency in the response to any one factor may be grounds for non-selection regardless of overall score.

APPENDIX A Contract Terms and Conditions

CENTRAL REGION EDUCATIONAL COOPERATIVE

Professional Services Contract For ECIC Spring Institute Accommodations RFP No. CREC-ECIC-2223-001

This agreement is made by and entered into by and between the Central Region Educational Cooperative REC #5 Council ("Council"), acting through its Executive Director, ("Director") in accordance with her authority as an agent of the council, and [insert contractor name] ("Contractor"). The Council and Contractor may be referred to jointly in this Contract as "Parties". The Parties agree as follows:

1. **Scope of Work.** The Contractor shall perform services as follows:

Host the Early Childhood Instructional Coaches' Spring Institute. The two-day conference will have 300 attendees, require 200 lodging rooms at the government rate on the first evening of the event, with working breakfast on day 2, working lunch for days 1 and 2, a general session room with AV, and ten to fifteen breakout meeting rooms.

[insert detailed statement of work]

No work is to be completed without prior approval by the CREC. Billing will be for approved work only and will not exceed the rates below. Invoicing will occur after work is performed.

2. **Cost.** Contractor shall be compensated only for services rendered for an amount not to exceed [insert total cost].

[insert further cost breakdowns]

- 3. **Payment.** Payment for services rendered and expenses in connection with such services will be rendered to the Contractor upon receipt by the Council of a detailed signed statement of account, including the [insert provided service] and the amount to be reimbursed for each.
- 4. **Terms.** The work to be completed under this Contract shall begin [insert date] and must be completed on [insert date] unless terminated in accordance to Paragraph 5 of this Contract.
- 5. **Termination.** This Contract may be terminated for any reason by either Party upon written notice delivered to the other Party at lease [insert number of days] days prior to the intended date of termination. By such termination, neither Party may nullify obligations already incurred for performance or failure to perform prior to the date of termination.
- 6. **Assignment.** Contractor shall not assign any portion of the services to be provided in this contract without prior written approval of the Director.

- 7. **Appropriations.** The terms of this Contract are contingent upon sufficient appropriations and authorization being made by the appropriate State and Federal authorities for the performance of this contract. If sufficient appropriations are not made, this Contract shall terminate upon written notice by the Council to Contractor. The Council's notification related to sufficient appropriations shall be accepted by the Contractor and shall be final.
- 8. Confidentiality. The Contractor shall maintain the confidentiality of any "education record" as defined by and in accordance with the regulations under the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA).
- 9. Product of Services. The Contractor acknowledges the right of the U. S. Department of Education to have a royalty-free, non-exclusive, irrevocable right to reproduce, publish, or otherwise use, and to authorize others to use, the work for federal government purposes. The Contractor acknowledges the right of the State Department of Education, school councils as defined by New Mexico statues, and institutions enumerated in the New Mexico statutes, to have a royalty-free, non-exclusive, and irrevocable right to reproduce, publish, or otherwise use, and to authorize others to use, the work for the respective purposes. The Contractor shall have the right to copyright materials developed in the course of carrying out duties pursuant to this Contract.
- 10. **Amendment.** This Contract shall not be altered, changed, or amended except by written agreement executed by the Parties.
- 11. **Compliance with Law and Regulation.** This contract is governed by the laws and regulations of the state of New Mexico. The Contractor shall abide by all federal and state laws, rules, regulations, executive orders, including but not limited to those requirements related to the laws and regulations that prohibit unlawful discrimination under federal and state law. Contractor shall provide workers compensation benefits to its employees.
- 12. **Records and Audits.** The Contractor shall maintain detailed time records that indicate date, time, and nature of services rendered for seven years. Such records are subject to inspection or audit by the Council, the Public Education Department, U.S. Department of Education, Department of Finance and Administration, and State Auditor. The Council shall pay to Contractor reasonable costs associated with such audit.
- 13. **Entire Agreement.** This Contract is the final and complete expression of the Parties. No promises, representations or oral statements by either party shall be effective except as stated in this Contract. Modifications may be made only in writing if signed by both Parties.
- 14. Working Relationship. Contractor acknowledges that the Contractor is an independent contractor and not employee for any purpose of the Council or the Director.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Contract as of the date of execution by Central Region Educational Cooperative, below:

Ву:		
[insert Contractor name] Signature	Date	
Address		
City, State, Zip Code		
Approved:		
Central Region Educational Cooperative REC #5		
Ву:		
Maria Jaramillo – Executive Director	Date	_

MEMBERS: Estancia Municipal Schools, Jemez Valley Public Schools, Laguna Department of Education, Magdalena Municipal Schools, Mountainair Public Schools, Quemado Independent Schools, Vaughn Municipal Schools, San Diego Riverside Charter, Sequoyah Adolescent Treatment Center, Children's Psychiatric Center, New Mexico Corrections Department, Juvenile Justice Services/CYFD

APPENDIX B MANDATORY REQUIREMENTS CHECKLIST

Yes/No	Letter of Transmittal Each proposal shall be accompanied by a letter of transmittal (Please Refer to Appendix C). CAUTION: The proposal shall be binding without restriction. Offerors shall not include language in the letter of transmittal such as "subject to successful negotiation" or words to that effect. The letter of transmittal SHALL follow the format provided and it shall be signed by the appropriate representatives. Failure to follow these instructions shall result in the rejection of the proposal.
Yes/No	Number of Copies. Offerors shall deliver one (1) original and three (3) identical copies of their proposal to the location specified in Section I, Paragraph D on or before the closing date and time for receipt of proposals.
Yes/No	 <u>Proposal Format and Organization.</u> All proposal shall be typewritten on standard 8 1/2" x 11" paper (larger paper is permissible for charts, spreadsheets, etc.) and placed within a binder with tabs delineating each section. The proposal shall not exceed 25 pages. The proposal shall be organized and indexed in the following format and shall contain, at a minimum, all listed items in the sequence indicated. 1. Letter of Transmittal. See Section II, Paragraph C.25 for requirements. 2. Table of Contents 3. Proposals Summary (optional) 4. Response to Mandatory Specifications
	 a. Corporate Experience b. Corporate References c. Project Plan Accommodations Proposal Catering Proposal Catering Proposal Room Block cut-off date Attrition Terms Cost Proposal 5. Response to Agency Terms and Conditions 6. Offeror's Additional Terms and Conditions 7. Current W-9 8. Campaign Contribution Disclosure Form 9. Other Supporting Material
	Within each section of their proposal, Offerors should address the items in the order in which they appear in this RFP. All forms provided in the RFP shall be thoroughly completed and included in the appropriate section of the proposal. All discussion of proposed costs, rates or expenses should occur only in the Cost Proposal section.

	Any proposal that does not adhere to these requirements may be deemed non-responsive and rejected on that basis.		
	The proposal summary may be included by Offerors to provide the Evaluation Committee with an overview of the technical and business features of the proposal; however, this material will not be used in the evaluation process unless specifically reference from other portions of the Offeror's proposal.		
	Offerors may include other materials that they feel may improve the quality of their responses. However, these items should be included as items in a separate appendix.		
Yes/No	Specifications.		
	LOCATION		
	Albuquerque, NM		
	or		
	Surrounding Area		
	DATES		
	Any available 2-day period between April 17, 2023 and May 30, 2023		
	SLEEPING ROOM REQUIREMENTS		
	Dates		
	Day 1 Total		
	200 200		
	ROOM RATES AND PROVISIONS		
	 Lodging/Rooms are to be booked at the current government rate Dishonored reservations to be counted toward room block commitment 		
	calculations		
	 Three-week cut off for room block, with rooms provided at the group rate after the cut off if rooms are available 		
	 Room attrition should specify our ability to reduce room block by a total of 20% without penalty 		
	 If you are unable to accommodate the entire room block, please identify overflow plans 		
	GENERAL PROVISIONS		
	 Sufficient meeting space and sleeping accommodations in the same building or within walking distance (under 1 mile). 		
	 Billing procedures: CREC needs 30 days after receipt of agreed upon invoice in 		
	order to pay. Additionally, CREC operates under the State of New Mexico's		
	fiscal year, and will require that the invoice is received with enough time to		
	review and process it for payment before close of business on June 30, 2023.		

	 Please indicate that the hotel will not be undergoing renovation at the time of our event. Prior to the event, we will provide an estimated program specifying our daily requirements. Hotel should assign and provide meeting rooms and banquet space names 30 days prior to event so we may print the program. The hotel may not make changes to these rooms without written consent by CREC. Please detail that there is no set up or change charges for meeting rooms. CREC would like all room set ups to be completed a minimum of 30 minutes prior to posted meeting time. 	
	 MEETING ROOM AND ACCOMMODATION WITH F&B REQUIREMENTS A general session room with AV to accommodate 300 people set in rounds 10 TO 15 breakout session rooms without AV to accommodate 25 people Working Breakfast will be provided on Day 2 Working Lunch will be provided on Days 1-2 	
	MANDATORY SPECIFICATIONS Offerors must provide a written response and/or a reference to an appropriate paragraph(s) in supporting technical documentation for each specification. The proposal response must follow the order in which the specifications are listed. All the specifications are MANDATORY. Offerors should respond in the form of a thorough narrative to each specification. The narratives along with required supporting materials will be evaluated and awarded points accordingly.	
Yes/No	Corporate Experience.	
Yes/No	Corporate References.	
Yes/No	Project Plan.	
Yes/No	Cost Proposal.	
Yes/No	Current W-9	
Yes/No	Signed Campaign Contribution Disclosure Form	

APPENDIX C

LETTER OF TRANSMITTAL FOR

The failure to properly complete all the items in this form will result in the disqualification of the proposal.

1. Identify (Name) and Mailing Address of the submitting organizations(s): (Proposed Contractor)

2. Identify the name,	title, telephone and fax numbers, and e-mail address of the person authorized
by the organization(s)	to contractually obligate the organization(s). (Proposed Contractor)
Name:	
Title:	
Telephone Number:	
Fax Number:	
E-mail Address:	
3. Identify the persor	n(s) to contacted for clarifications:
Name:	
Title:	
Telephone Number:	

cicpitotic multipert	
Fax Number:	
E-mail Address:	

On behalf of the submitting organization named in item #1 above, I accept the Conditions Governing the Procurement as required in Section II, Paragraph C.1. I concur that submission of our proposal constitutes acceptance of the Evaluation Factors contained in Section V of this RFP. I acknowledge receipt of any and all amendments to this RFP. I agree that this proposal is binding and firm for a period of (90) days after the due date for receipt of proposals.

Signature

Date

Must be signed by the person identified in item #2 above.

APPENDIX D

CAMPAIGN CONTRIBUTION DISCLOSURE FORM

Pursuant to NMSA 1978, § 13-1-191.1 (2006), any person seeking to enter into a contract with any state agency or local public body for professional services, a design and build project delivery system, or the design and installation of measures the primary purpose of which is to conserve natural resources must file this form with that state agency or local public body. This form must be filed even if the contract qualifies as a small purchase or a sole source contract. The prospective contractor must disclose whether they, a family member or a representative of the prospective contractor has made a campaign contribution to an applicable public official of the state or a local public body during the two years prior to the date on which the contractor submits a proposal or, in the case of a sole source or small purchase contract, the two years prior to the date the contractor signs the contract, if the aggregate total of contributions given by the prospective contractor, a family member, or a representative of the prospective contractor to the public official exceeds two hundred fifty dollars (\$250) over the two-year period

Furthermore, the state agency or local public body shall void an executed contract or cancel a solicitation or proposed award for a proposed contract if: 1) a prospective contractor, a family member of the prospective contractor, or a representative of the prospective contractor gives a campaign contribution or other thing of value to an applicable public official or the applicable public official's employees during the pendency of the procurement process or 2) a prospective contractor fails to submit a fully completed disclosure statement pursuant to the law.

THIS FORM MUST BE FILED BY ANY PROSPECTIVE CONTRACTOR, WHETHER OR NOT THEY, THEIR FAMILY MEMBER, OR THEIR REPRESENTATIVE HAS MADE ANY CONTRIBUTIONS SUBJECT TO DISCLOSURE.

The following definitions apply:

"Applicable public official" means a person elected to an office or a person appointed to complete a term of an elected office, who has the authority to award or influence the award of the contract for which the prospective contractor is submitting a competitive sealed proposal or who has the authority to negotiate a sole source or small purchase contract that may be awarded without submission of a sealed competitive proposal.

"Campaign Contribution" means a gift, subscription, loan, advance or deposit of money or other thing of value, including the estimated value of an in-kind contribution, that is made to or received by an applicable public official or any person authorized to raise, collect, or expend contributions on that official's behalf for the purpose of electing the official to either statewide or local office. "Campaign Contribution" includes the payment of a debt incurred in an election campaign, but does not include the value of services provided without compensation or unreimbursed travel or other personal expenses of individuals who volunteer a portion or all of their time on behalf of a candidate or political committee, nor does it include the administrative or solicitation expenses of a political committee that are paid by an organization that sponsors the committee.

"Family member" means spouse, father, mother, child, father-in-law, mother-in-law,

daughter-in-law, or son-in-law.

"Pendency of the procurement process" means the time period commencing with the public notice of the Request for Proposal and ending with the award of the contract or the cancellation of the Request for Proposal.

"Person" means any corporation, partnership, individual, joint venture, association or any other private legal entity.

"Prospective contractor" means a person who is subject to the competitive sealed proposal process set forth in the Procurement Code or is not required to submit a competitive sealed proposal because that person qualifies for a sole source or a small purchase contract.

"Representative of a prospective contractor" means an officer or director of a corporation, a member or manager of a limited liability corporation, a partner of a partnership or a trustee of a trust of the prospective contractor.

Name(s) of Applicable Public Official(s): Michelle Lujan Grisham, Governor Howie Morales, Lieutenant Governor

DISCLOSURE OF CONTRIBUTIONS BY PROSPECTIVE CONTRACTOR:

Contribution Made By:	
Relation to Prospective Contractor:	
Date Contribution(s) Made:	
Amount(s) of Contribution(s):	
Nature of Contributions(s):	
Purpose of Contributions: (Attach extra pages if necessary)	

Signature

Title/Position

Date

-OR-

NO CONTRIBUTIONS IN THE AGGREGATE TOTAL OVER TWO HUNDRED FIFTY DOLLARS (\$250) WERE MADE to an applicable public official by me, a family member or representative.

Signature

Title/Position

Date